
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Commercial Services 
Cabinet Committee

Members of the Commercial Services Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held Virtually on Tuesday, 2 June 2020 at 7.30 pm when the 
business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted. Details on how Members 
can attend the meeting will be sent separately. 

In response to COVID-19, the Government has legislated to permit remote attendance by Elected 
Members at formal meetings. This is conditional on other Elected Members and the public being 
able to hear those participating in the meeting. This meeting will be streamed live and can be 
watched via Gravesham Borough Council’s YouTube Channel:- 

www.youtube.com/graveshamtv 

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private of those (if any) in Part B in public 

5. Coronavirus: Commercial Services Cabinet Portfolio Impact (Pages 7 - 10)

http://www.youtube.com/graveshamtv


6. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

7. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them.

Part B
Items likely to be considered in Private

None

Members

Cllr Lenny Rolles (Chair)
Cllr Sarah Gow (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Gurdip Ram Bungar
Jordan Meade
Leslie Pearton
Anthony Pritchard
Tony Rana
Tony Rice
Gurbax Singh
Denise Tiran

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Commercial Services Cabinet Committee

Wednesday, 26 February 2020 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr Lenny Rolles (Chair)
Cllr Sarah Gow (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: John Caller
Jordan Meade
Leslie Pearton
Anthony Pritchard
Tony Rana
Tony Rice
Gurbax Singh
Denise Tiran

Sarah Parfitt Assistant Director (Corporate Services)
Elizabeth Thornton Service Manager (Property and Regulatory Services)
Chris Wakeford Committee Services Officer (Minutes)

16. Apologies 

None.

17. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 2019 were signed by the Chair.

18. Declarations of Interest 

Cllrs Sarah Gow, Tony Rice and Lenny Rolles together with the Assistant Director 
(Corporate Services) declared an Other Significant Interest in agenda item 5. Corporate 
Performance update – Quarter Three 2019-20 in that they have been appointed as Directors 
of Rosherville Limited, the Council’s Local Authority Trading Company.  Cllr Rolles also 
declared that he was the Chairman of the Rosherville Limited Board.

19. Corporate Performance Update - Quarter Three 2019-20 

The Assistant Director (Corporate Services) presented the Members of Commercial Services 
Committee with an update against the Performance Management Framework, as introduced 
within the council’s Corporate Plan, for Quarter Three 2019-20 (October to December 2019).

The Assistant Director (Corporate Services) highlighted the following:

At Full Council in December 2019, the formation of a Local Authority trading Company 
(LATCo) was approved. Since then, the company – Rosherville Limited – has been formally 
incorporated with Companies House.

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Commercial Services Cabinet Committee 26.02.2020

2

On 3 February 2020 Cabinet approved the following:

 The Board membership for Rosherville Limited and the Articles of Association for the 
Company.

 The Shareholder Group to act as an advisory group to the Leader in aiding the decision 
making process. This included the membership of the Shareholder Group along with the 
Shareholder Agreement and terms of reference for the Shareholder Group.

 The formation of two subsidiary companies, subject to a complete business case being 
presented. These relate to the vehicle workshop service and a property development 
company to aid the Heritage Quarter development project.

On 25 February 2020 Full Council approved £550,000 of funding sources to set up the 
companies.

In addition, through procurement of new contracts in 2019/20, the Council secured funding in 
the region of £42,000 to help support the council deliver specific community events. For 
example, Swale Heating has committed to funding the council fireworks event for the next 10 
years. It is anticipated increased activity in this area will enable greater 'social value' returns 
to support council initiatives.

The Assistant Director (Corporate Services) fielded questions from the Committee and 
highlighted the following:

 The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires the Council “to have regard to 
economic, social and environmental well-being in connection with public services 
contracts; and for connected purposes”.
This means that the Council must consider where added value and benefit, in relation 
to economic, social and environmental aspects, can be delivered to the Borough 
above those already delivered as part of the requirements of the specification. 
Examples include; a company providing funding for an event (e.g. fireworks) and 
training opportunities / apprenticeships being offered to local residents.

 A Local Authority Trading Company allows the Council to do anything a commercial 
entity can do.

The Chair highlighted that the vehicle workshop service and the property development 
company were the first steps for the Council and further ideas would be considered by the 
Board in the future.

Resolved that the Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2019-20 be noted.

20. Exclusion 

Resolved pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972  that the 
public be excluded during the following items of business because it was likely in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted that, if member of the public were 
present during this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

Page 4



Commercial Services Cabinet Committee 26.02.2020

3

21. Property Dashboard 

The Assistant Director (Corporate Services) and Service Manager (Property & Regulatory 
Services) presented the Committee with the Commercial Property Portfolio Dashboard as at 
12 February 2020. The Dashboard had been developed by the Council’s Finance and 
Property Services teams and covered a portfolio worth approximately £42m. The information 
had been analysed sector by sector and events that might affect the portfolio had also been 
highlighted. 

The Assistant Director (Corporate Services) agreed to introduce the Net Gains in terms of 
rent for the next Commercial Property Portfolio Dashboard.

The Committee discussed the Commercial Property Portfolio Dashboard in detail and 
commended the format of the document and the prudent work that had been completed.

Resolved that the Information Dashboard – Gravesham Borough Council’s 
Commercial Property Portfolio be noted.

Close of Meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.22 pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Commercial Services Committee

Date: 2 June 2020

Reporting officer: Director Corporate Services and Service Manager (Property 
and Regulatory)

Subject: Coronavirus: Commercial Services Cabinet Portfolio Impact

Purpose and summary of report: 
To provide an overview of the impact of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic upon the 
practical delivery of the respective services within the Commercial Services Cabinet portfolio.

Recommendations:
1. The report is for information only

1. Background

1.1 The Covid-19 pandemic has had the most profound impact on the daily lives of 
UK residents of any event this century; significant societal restrictions on 
movement and association, coupled with intense harm to the national economy 
through the enforced closure of businesses and an inevitable loss of jobs.

1.2 Collectively, the impact of Covid-19 is one of significant damage to the health and 
wellbeing of the Gravesham community and, equally, presents a substantial 
challenge to the future sustainability of the council and its essential frontline 
community services. 

1.3 On 12 May 2020, a report was considered by Council outlining the social and 
economic impact the pandemic has had upon the Gravesham community and 
providing details of the council’s comprehensive community support offer during 
the period. At that meeting, Council unanimously put on record its gratitude to all 
those involved across all sectors in the outstanding response to the global Covid-
19 pandemic and, equally, expressed condolences to those who have lost loved 
ones in this tragic event. 

1.4 This report aims to provide a focus on the Commercial Services portfolio in 
regards to the practical impact of the pandemic and, specifically, to provide clarity 
on what new policies or amended working practices were established in order to 
adapt to what was, and continues to be, a rapidly evolving challenge.

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



2

2. Impact on Commercial Activities

2.1 In the last year this committee has played a key role in the formation of 
Rosherville Limited.  COVID-19 is likely to have an impact on the trading activity of 
the company.

3. Impact on Property Investment Activities

3.1 Since 23 March 2020 the council has not sought to identify or progress any 
property investment opportunities.

3.2 Commercial rent is generally due quarterly in advance on 25 March, 24 June, 29 
September and 25 December each year albeit monthly payments are becoming 
more common.  Given the UK lockdown did not commence until 23 March it is too 
early to know what impact there will be on the Council’s commercial income.  The 
council will keep this under review and has been supporting its commercial 
tenants on a case-by-case basis through the consideration of alternative payment 
arrangements, close liaison with tenants falling behind with their rents and 
signposting to support packages put in place by Government.  Members will be 
aware of the temporary restrictions on landlords to repossess or take action for 
non-payment of rent.  The council has been adhering to these restrictions.

3.3 Increases or decreases in rents or capital values tend to lag behind the market by 
approximately three to six months and it is therefore too soon to establish what 
the impact of the pandemic on the Council’s investment portfolio will be.  

3.4 What is likely to happen though is that yields will ‘soften’ leading to a reduction in 
capital value even if there are no changes in occupation.  A reduction in capital 
value is not in itself an issue for a landlord unless it wishes to sell its interest or 
has a debt against the property. As the Council did not borrow to purchase and its 
intention was to hold properties long term for the rental income stream, this should 
not be an issue in itself.  Returns from commercial properties are expected to 
continue to outperform interest returns achieved by holding the money on short 
term deposits, particularly given the reduction of the Bank of England base rate to 
0.1% in March 2020.

4. Background Papers

4.1 There are no background papers relating to this report.

Page 8



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal There are no legal implications. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

As detailed in the report, it is too early to know the impact that COVID-19 will have 
on the council's investment portfolio.  This will continue to be monitored.

Risk Assessment At this stage, it is difficult to ascertain the true level of risk to the council.  Processes 
have been put in place to support tenants of commercial properties and it is hoped 
that these will ensure tenants remain in situ.  This will continue to be monitored 
over the coming months.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
N/A

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
N/A

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan The work of the Commerical Service Committee, and the consideration set out in 
this report contribute to the following Corporate Plan obejctive:
#3 Progress: an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to 
continuous service improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong 
governance environment
Specifically, the following aims:
- Develop an entrepreneurial culture
- A financially innovative council

Page 9

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


4

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder implications.

Digital and website 
implications

There are no digital and website implications.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

There are no safeguarding children and culnerable adults implications.

Page 10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Coronavirus: Commercial Services Cabinet Portfolio Impact

